
Mixed-Finance Procu rement
Commonly Asked Questions

Q1: What are the federal regulations governing procurement for PHAs when
Federal grant funds are involved?

The federal regulations included at 24 CFR part 85 (known as "part 85") describe
the procedures for conducting public procurements. The basic procedures related
to such procurements are at part 85.36. The Mixed-Finance Interim Rule, at 24
CFR part 941 subpart F, contains additional information on mixed-finance
procurement, including exceptions to part 85.

Q2: What is the relationship between federal and local procurement
regulations?

Part 85 requires PHAs to use their own procurement procedures that reflect
applicable State and local laws and regulations, provided that the procurements
conform to applicable Federal law. Where local laws are more restrictive than
federal rules, the local laws supercede Federal law.

Q3: What is an RFP?

A Request for Proposals (RFP) is a form of competitive proposal procurement in
which price and other factors are evaluated. The PHA issues a written solicitation
to prospective offerors to submit a proposal including a price for a specific scope
of work, along with other information such as qualifications, experience, and
approach to performing the work. The PHA then evaluates the proposal based on
price and technical factors stated in the RFP, and enters into a fixed-price or cost
reimbursement contract with the selected firm.

Q4: What is an RFQ?

A Request for Qualifications (RFQ) is a written solicitation for competitive
proposals in which price need not be requested or used as an evaluation factor.
Instead, technical qualifications are reviewed and the PHA enters into
negotiations with the top ranked firm. In the event the PHA is unable to negotiate
a fair and reasonable price with the top ranked firm, the PHA will enter into
negotiations with the next highest ranked firm.

Q5: What is the difference between an RFP and an RFQ?

An RFP must request price for a specific scope of work and evaluate price as part
of the selection process. An RFQ does not request price (although it may ask for
price parameters or other financial information), and evaluates firms primarily on
their quaiifications, rather than on a stated approach to a specific statement of
work.

Q6: Which type of competitive proposal procurement document shoutd be used
when?

Part 85 allows PHAs to use RFQs when procuring architect-engineering (A/E)
services. The Mixed-Finance Interim Rule expands the ability of PHAs to use
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RFQs to include procurements of "partners" (i.e., developer; see Q7) in a mixed-

finance transaction, unless prohibited by local procurement regulations. All other

competitive proposal procurements must be via an RFP; this includes program

managers, legal counsel, development or financial advisors, and other consultants.

Q7: What is a partner?

A partner is "a third pafty entity with whom the PHA has entered into a
partnership or other contractual arrangement to provide for the mixed-finance
development of public housing units .. .  and that has primary responsibi l i ty with

the PHA for the development of the housing units under the terms of the approved
proposal" (see 24 CFR Part 941.604).

HUD has interpreted "partner" to mean a developer, responsible for carrying out

development activit ies, and not someone acting solely in an advisory capacity.
Advisors are not considered partners, and must be procured via an RFP.

Q8: What is a developer?

An entity contracted to develop (and possibly operate) a mixed-finance
development that includes public housing units, pursuant to the Mixed-Finance
Interim Rule. and under the terms of a HUD-approved proposal. A developer
generally has an ownership interest in the entity that owns and operates the units
in a mixed-f inance development (e.g., as the General Partner of a Limited
Partnership).

Q9: What is a program manager?

An entity the PHA procures to represent its interests and to assume responsibility
for coordinating all participants including the PHA, HUD, third parry consultants
to the PHA and (possibly) financing sources. A program manager may also assist

the PHA in its negotiations with the developer. A program manager cannot also

act as the developer, as a program manager, by definition, represents the PHA,
while a developer does not.

Q10: How does procuring a partner affect future procurements?

ln a mixed-finance project where the PHA has properly procured its partner via
part 85, that partner need not procure subsequent entities (e.g., general contractor)
via part 85, unless the PHA or its affiliate "exercises significant functions within
ihe o.wner entit'y- with respect to managing the development of the proposed units"
and/or ongoing operation of the project. Where the PHA or its affiliate exercises
significant functions, HUD may make a case-by-case exception for the need to

comply with part 85 if the owner entity develops an acceptable alternate
procurement plan.
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Q11: What is an owner entity?

An entity that will own the public housing units in a mixed-finance development.

Q12: What does it mean to "exercise significant functions"?

HUD has determined that when the PHA or its affiliate is the sole or managing
general partner in the ownership entity, the PHA or its affiliate is exercising
significant functions. and24 CFR Part 85 applies for subsequent procurements. If
the PHA or its affiliate acts as the developer, part 85 applies. Part 85 also applies
for subsequent procurements if the developer is a subgrantee, such as when a city
agency, acting as a subgrantee, is the developer.

Q13: What kinds of activit ies do not constitute "signif icant functions"?

In al l  cases, the PHA should discuss its part icular situation with HUD to verify
whether the PHA's roles wil l  require the use of part 85 in subsequent
procurements. However, HUD has determined that the fol lorving do not tr igger
the use of part 85:
. monitoring units receiving operating subsidy to ensure compliance with

var ious regulat ions:
. coordinating communications with agencies regarding project f inancing and

operations;
r maintaining the wait ing l ist;
.  providing CSS services; and
o attending construction meetings and reviewing draws.

Q14: Why would a PHA establish an aff i l iate?

The goal of establishing an aff i l iate for many PHAs is to l imit l iabi l i ty. Acting as
developer, a PHA may want to establish an affiliate specifically for purposes of
developing the site and owning the improvements in a mixed-finance
development in an effort to limit exposure of all the PHA's resources. However,
not all PHAs are permitted to create an affiliate, depending upon the state-
enabling legislat ion.

Q15: lf a PHA or its affiliate is acting as its own developer, what procurement
requirements need to be followed?

A PHA or its affiliate acting as developer must follow part 85 in all procurements.

Q16: ls i t  possible to procure a consultant for a mixed-f inance project using the
small purchase method?

Yes. as long as the total value of the services, including both the original contract
and all change orders, does not exceed $100,000, or the local small purchase
threshold, whichever is lower.
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Q17: Can a PHA procure a developer or program manager using a
noncompetitive (e.9., sole source) procurement?

Noncompetitive procurements are an exception to part 85. HUD's headquarters
office must approve the use of any noncompetitive procurements. In addition,
PHAs may not certify a procurement that is noncompetitive.

Q18: l f  a PHA undertakes a competit ive procurement in accordance with part 85
' 

, ,  but only receives one response to i ts RFP or RFQ, is that considered a

$Ttl competitive procurement, or is a sole source exception required?
i ,' ' ' 

The procurement is considered competitive, and no sole source exception is
required. However, as with any competitive procurement, the PHA's files should
demonstrate that the procurement was appropriately advertised and a wide range
of responses solicited. PHAs need to ensure that this circumstance does not
constitute sole source procurement under local pol icy and procedure.

Q19: Are there any rules regarding the make-up of the selection committee?

Yes. All members of the committee must be trained to understand and implement
the selection process and its obligations. HUD has required a majority of the
members of the committee to be PHA stafTmembers, as the PHA has fiduciary
responsibi l i ty for the funds and cannot cede control of their use. While PHA
board members can also sit on the committee as a PHA representation, HUD does
not general ly encourage board members to become involved in individual
procurements. In addit ion, no member of the selection committee can have a
conflict of interest in the procurement.

Q20: What constitutes a "conflict of interest" by a member of the selection
committee?

Pan 85 bars PHA employees, officers, or agents from participating in a
procurement from which they could benefit financially. Specifically, it is a
breach of ethical standards for any PHA employee, officer, or agent to participate
directly or indirectly in a procurement if:

I . the employee or any relative has a financial interest perlaining to the
procurement;

2. a business or organization in which the employee or any relative has a
financial interest pertaining to the procurement;

-?. an1' other person. business or organization rvith ....,hom t"he emplcyee or an)/
relative is negotiating or has an arrangement concerning prospective
employment is involved in the procurement.

Upon discovery of actual or potential conflict, the employee, officer, or agent
shall promptly disclose the conflict in writing to the PHA executive director or
board. The PHA will then make a public disclosure in accordance with its
internal procurement procedures. Unless the PHA determines there is no conflict
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of interest or seeks a waiver from HUD, a conflict of interest will usually result in
a written statement of disqualification and the withdrawal of the employee,
officer, or agent from further participation in the transaction. (See 24 CFR part
85.36(bX3). )

Q21: When should a PHA perform a cost or price analysis for a procurement?

Part 85.36(f)( l) requires a cost or price analysis in connection with any
procurement action, including a change order. A price analysis is an estimate of
the total value of the services, based on the scope of work. At a minimum. for a
competit ive procurement PHAs are to estimate the value of the services solicited
prior to the receipt of bids, and use this price analysis (also sometimes called an
"independent cost estimate") as a tool for evaluating cost reasonableness. Under
a cost analvsis. a PHA would estimate not only the total value of services but also
the individual cost components (e.g., labor, overhead, profi t ,  etc.). 

-fhis 
is

required fbr noncompetit ive (sole source) procurement actions. including change
orders to contracts.

Q22: On what should a PHA base its price analysis?

In addit ion to an understanding of the market price fbr the services solicited. a
PIJA should take into account the applicable cost principles referenced at 24 CIrR
par t85.22 ( for  PHAs,  OMB Circu larA-87) .

Q23: Can the RFP or RFQ require respondents be local, MMBE, or not-for-
profit?

No. However, the evaluation criteria can give points fbr M/WBE firm
participation on the team, and points can be awarded for knowledge of the local
market. Part 85 expressly prohibits the use of local geographical preferences
unless a Federal statute mandates or encourages local pref 'erence. In addit ion,
some localities or states prohibit the use of preferences based on race or sex
incl uding M/WBE preferences.

Q24: Can a PHA require respondents be resident-owned businesses?

Yes. A PHA is permitted to engage in "alternative procurement procedures"
under 24 CFR part963, under which the PHA sets aside a contract for resident-
owned businesses (as defined by part 963). The total worth of such contracts
cannot exceed $l mil l ion. In selecting the resident-owned business, the PHA
miisi awar,i  ihe contract io a resideni-owned bi- isiness ihat possessis ihe abii i t i  io
perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the procurement. In
addition, the PHA must demonstrate the price is reasonable (i.e., does not exceed
the independent cost estimate and the price normally paid for comparable product
or services). and maintain all required records.
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Q25: What are the required clauses in a contract?

There are thirteen required clauses, listed in 24 CFR part 85.36(i), some of which
apply only to certain types of contracts (e.g., compliance with Davis-Bacon wage
rates). The required provisions are:

I Administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors
violate or breach contract termb, and provide for such sanctions and penalties
as may be appropriate. (Contracts more than the simplified acquisition
threshold, currently $ I 00,000.)

Termination for cause and for convenience by the grantee or subgrantee
including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for
sett lement. (Al l  contracts in excess of $10,000.)

Compliance with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entit led
"Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order I 1375 of
October 13,1961, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations
(41 CFR chapter 60). (Al l  construction contracts awarded in excess of
$ I 0,000 by grantees and their contractors or subgrantees.)

Compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act ( I  8 U.S.C. 874) as
supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 3). (Al l
contracts and subgrants for construction or repair.)

Compf iance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276ato 276a-7) as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5).
(Construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by grantees and
subgrantees when required by Federal grant program legislation.)

Compliance with Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours, and
Safefy Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-330) as supplemented by Department of
Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5). (Construction contracts awarded by
grantees and subgrantees in excess of$2,000, and in excess of$2,500 for
other contracts which involve the employment of mechanics or laborers.)

Notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to
reporting.

Notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to patent
rights with respect to any discovery or invention which arises or is developed
in the course ofor under such contract.

Awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to cop5'rights and
rights in data.

Access by the grantee, the subgrantee, the Federal grantor agency, the
Comptroller Generalof the United States, or any of their duly authorized
representatives to any books, documents, papers, and records ofthe
contractor which are directly pertinent to that specific contract for the
purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.

2.

a
J .

5 .

7 .

o
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I L Retention ofall required records for three years after grantees or subgrantees
make final payments and all other pending matters are closed.

12. Compliance with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued
under section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1867(h)), section 508 of
the Clean Water  Act  (33 U.S.C.  1368) ,  Execut ive Order  I1738,  and
Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR part l5). (Contracts,
subcontracts, and subgrants of amounts in excess of $100,000.)

13. Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are
contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the
Energy Pol icy and Conservat ion Act  (Pub.  L.94-163,  89 Stat .  871.)

Q26: Some developers have reservations about agreeing to the PHAs right to
\ '  .  terminate Development Agreements for convenience, one of the HUD-

t{6{tl 
required contract clauses. Does HUD ever waive that requirement?

, r ,  '  No. Termination for convenience must be contained in al l  PHA contracts. On a
case-by-case basis, HUD's Off ice of General Counsel has approved variat ions on
the standard language, such as the fol lowing:

T'erminatiortJbr C'onvenietrcL'. The Authorit l 'may terminate this Agrecment, in
whole or in part, , 'vhenever, the Authority determines that such termination is in its
best interest. Any such termination shall be eff 'ected by'delivery to the Developer of
a Notice of Termination specifying the extent to which the perfbrmance of the work
under this Agreement is terminated, and the date upon which such termination
becomes effective. l l-the pertbrmance of the rvork is terminated under this
provision. the Authority shall be l iable fbr actual third party, and other reasonable
and proper costs, including reasonable developer profit and developer overhead for
work done, resulting from such termination. This provision shall not be exercised
by the Authority after a Phase has achieved flnancial closing. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing herein shall invalidate this Article _ for future Phases of the
Development that have not achieved financial closing.

The general  pr inc ip les are that  terminat ion must  be in  "good fa i th"  f rom a legal
standpoint. The contractor generally has to be made rvhole for work perfbrmed to
the t ime of  terminat ion,  and possib ly  for  addi t ional ,  unavoidable on-going costs to
protect work, etc., and for costs of preparing their claim lor final payment. HUD
will carefully scrutinize how these costs are determined to ensure that they are
reasonable and within al l  applicable guidelines.

Q27: What is the relationship between the RFP and the contract?

The contract is the end result of the RFP. Accordingly, all services for which the
PHA and selected firm have an agreement, either in the original contract or in a
subsequent change order, must be solicited in the original RFP and included in the
PHA's proposal. In addition, the contract generally incorporates the RFP and
proposal by reference.
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Q28: What is the relationship between the RFQ and the Development
Agreement?

The Development Agreement is the end result of the RFQ. Since an RFQ need
not request a price or include a fixed scope of work, the Development Agreement
is the result of the negotiations befween the PHA and the developer. The
Development Agreement includes all terms, including scope of work,
compensation, schedule, and each party's r ights and I iabi l i t ies.

ls  HUD approval required for contracts that are longer than 2 years?

No, there is no longer any such requirement for PHAs that have entered into the
1995 version of the ACC. The Procurement Handbook (dated January 1993)
incorporates the pre-1995 ACC two-year I imit  on service contracts,  unless HUD
approval is obtained. 

- fhe 
ACC was revised in 1995 and the contract term clause

was el iminated. Most PHAs have entered into the 1995 ACC with H[JD. HUD's
Off ice of Publ ic Housing suggests cont inuing the two-vear term as a matter of
pol icy for most procurements. The Off ice of General  Counsel has suggested that
contracts should not extend for longer than 5 years, and that contracts for legal
services should be no lonser than 3 vears in order to af lbrd ful l  and ooen
competi t ion.

Q30: In either the HOPE Vl or Mixed Finance programs, does HUD require that
r architects hired by a developer use a particular form of A/E contract (e.9.,

fmrt{l 
AIA or HUD-specific forms)?

i /  ,  '  No, HUD does not require any part icular form for prof-essional services when
those services are being provided through a developer procured via part 85. The
developer may elect to use HUD, AIA, or another form. Please note, however,
that many Development Agreements (between the PHA and its developer) contain
certain clauses that apply not only to the developer, but also to its subcontractors.
and the A/E contract should reflect these clauses.

Q31: l f  a PHA is unable to define a detai led scope of work for a mult i-year
contract, what is the appropriate procurement method?

Procurement for consulting services must be via an RFP. However, procurement
regulations do allow PHAs to issue an RFP and to enter into a contract for
services on a task order basis. In this instance, the PHA issues an RFP with a
general scope that covers the life ofthe project and a specific scope and task list
for the first phase of the project. Respondents will provide a price for the more
narrow scope and hourly rates for subsequent task order negotiations, and the
PHA will make the award based on price and other factors. For subsequent
phases, the PHA will draft more detailed scopes. the contractor would give a price
based on this scope, and the PHA and contractor could negotiate if necessary.
This is only permitted if the original scope contained language covering the
specific tasks included in the subsequent task orders.
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Q32: When procuring for services using a base scope with a series of task
orders, can a PHA create a list of several contractors, each of whom could
bid on subsequent task orders?

Yes. PHAs can "pre-qualifu" a list of firms based the scores of firms under an
RFP issued by the PHA. The highest-ranking firms could then be put on a
prequalified list. Subsequent task orders under the contract rvould be then
competed among the firms on the list. As with the first task order, each firm
would need to provide a not-to-exceed limit for the task order.

Q33: Does the cosUprice analysis requirement apply to each specif ic task order?

As when under-taking any contract action, PHAs need to do a cost or price
analysis for each task order. If the PHA is competing the task order among
several f irms, a price analysis is needed. If  only one f irm is providing a price for
the services. the PHA must do a ful l  cost analvsis.

Q34: May a PHA issue an RFP that asks only for hourly rates?

No. HUD does not consider hourly rates to be suff icient price competit ion, as the
total value of the services is dependent on the number of hours worked. PHAs
must ask fbr a not-to-exceed limit for a specific set of services.

Q35: lf I have procured a consultant or set of consultants to write a HOPE Vl
application, do I need to reprocure them as my implementation team?

Yes. unless the original RFP included implementation in the scope of work.

Q36: Can a f irm who part icipated previously in some aspect of development
planning or implementation respond to subsequent sol icitat ions for
services at the project?

Yes. However, to ensure fair and open competit ion the PHA must make every
ef fort to provide all potential respondents with equal access to information.

Q37: Does HUD require a sub-grant agreement between a Housing Authority and
t { a city department if the Housing Authority uses the services of a city

-c€s|ll" department in connection with its mixed-finance program?

. r " 
' The answer depends on whether or not the Housing Authority is chartered as its

own entity or as a department within the overall city. If the Housing Authority is
a separate entity from the city. then a subgrant agreement or intergovernmental
agreemenl is requireci. A subgrant agreement is not requireci where the Housing
Authority is a department within the city, and the city is essentially providing
services in-house. However, although not required, HUD encourages a PHA
within city government to obtain an MOU with the other city department
outlining the scope of work and price. This helps clarifu roles of responsibility
and cost. In deciding whether to do the work in-house or undertake a separate
procurement, PHAs are also encouraged to evaluate the capacity of that department in
relation to the specific scope of work required. To foster greater economy and efficiency,
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PHAs are encouraged to enter into state and local intergovernmental agreements for
procurement or use of common goods and services (see 24 CFR 85.36 (bX5)).

Q38: Can a PHA contract directly with a firm that has been procured via part 85
-.rr' os part of a larger team, for services that were included in the scope for the

!S\r 
' -. or,|erall team? For example: a PHA has procured a full service program

, / , - management team using an appropriate part 85 process. After the
procurement, the PHA decides it wants to contract directly with the
architect that was included as a team member of the selected program
manager, essential ly removing the scope of work from the program
manager and putt ing i t  directly under the PHA. Can this be done without
the PHA going through another procurement process?

No, the contract with the separate subcontractor (in this case, an architect) is
considered a new procurement. In order to enter into the contract, the PHA must
procure those services in accordance with part 85. While the architect or other
subcontractor is not prohibited from subsequently contracting with the PHA
directly, that fjrm must first be selected through a process that allows full and
open competit ion. Contracting directly with the architect without a new
procurement could exclude other qualified architects who were unable to partner
with a program manager. or who partnered with a team that was not selected as
program manager fbr reasons other than design capabil i t ies.

Please note that in the case of an architect, an RFQ is an acceptable procurement
method. For any other subcontractor (e.g., f inancial or legal services), an RFP
must  be used.

Q39: Can a procured developer subsequently replace a team member that was
I '  named in the original RFQ response? For example: A PHA issues an RFQ

*St{l- for selection of a full-service developer for a HOFE Vl parcel and asks that
t . /  ,  '  the response include al l team members, including an architect. The PHA

then selects a developer based on the response and the qualifications of
the complete team. The selected developer subsequently cannot come to
agreement with the architect on fees and wishes to replace that architect
with another firm. Can the developer substitute a new architect into the
team without compromising the RFQ process?

Replacing the team member (in this situation, the architect) would not violate any
federal or HUD procurement rules. This substitution is considered a local issue
and its permissibility would be based on the language of the RFQ itself and the
scoring of the responses. HUD recommends the PHA review the original RFQ to
determine if there is any specific language allowing or forbidding team member
substitution. In addition, HUD recommends PHAs review the scoring to
determine whether the dropped team member made a difference in the selected firm.
Any challenges to the procurement would be handled locally and not by HUD.
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Q40: What is a developer fee?

A developer fee is money paid to a developer to cover the developer's overhead
and profit. The fee covers the staffand other necessary resources to coordinate
project development, including the securing of financing, and compensates the
developer for assuming these responsibi l i t ies and the associated risks. HUD's
Cost Control and Safe Harbor Standards indicate that the safe harbor standard for

- developer fee is9oh, with a maximtlm of 12Yo.

Q41: How is the developer fee calculated?

As a percentage of certain project costs. which are all costs less the following:

o PHA costs ( legal. admin, PM services)
o CSS costs
o relocation costs
. reserves, and
o the fee itself.

I f  the developer team is responsible for coordirrating i tems such as acquisit ion.
demolit ion. and rernediation. the costs of the i tems should be included in the
project costs on which the percentage fee is calculated; i f  the PHA undertakes
those items on its orvn. then those costs are excluded.

Q42: What kinds of developer compensation are excluded from the fee?

If a developer is procured for non-development services such as master planning
services, relocation, or CSS. and those services were solicited in the original RFQ,
the developer is typically compensated for those services according to a fixed-fee
schedule negotiated by the developer and PHA. 

' Ihis 
compensation is typical ly

separate from the developer fee, and the costs for those services are excluded
from the project costs from which the developer fee is calculated.

Q43: What are third-party costs?

Third-par1y costs are actual costs for services incurred by the developer that are
not part of the fee. Examples include A/E services, market studies, and
construction. These costs are considered project costs and are paid out of
available sources.

Q44: How should third-paffy eos^rs incurred during predevelopment be paid?

PHAs and developers may negotiate arangements by which the PHA reimburses
the developer for some or all of third-party costs incurred prior to loan closing
(referred to as "predevelopment"). These costs could include demolition,
remediation, market studies, or A/E services. HUD's Cost Control and Safe
Harbor Standards state that third-party predevelopment costs are splitT5%o
PHA|Z\% developer until closing, at which time the developer is reimbursed for
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the remaining25oh out of sources. HUD encourages PHAs to negotiate other
arrangements that reflect appropriate levels of risk by each parfy and the length of
the predevelopment period. Developers who bear more than 25oh of the
predevelopment costs over a long predevelopment period may be entitled to a
higher developer fee, while those that bear less lhan25o/o or bear costs for only a
short period of t ime should expect to receive lower compensation.

Q45: How does the HUD Rental Term Sheet affect the procurement of the
developer?

The Term Sheet, which consists of a narrative plus required attachments, includes
a description of the program and specific business terms and is the basis of the
mixed-f inance proposal. HUD has developed the Term Sheet for PHAs to
complete and submit to F{UD for each mixed-f inance transaction

The Rental Term Sheet does not affect the procurement itself. PHAs with staff
that have attended the procurement training can certify their procurements of
developers without obtaining HUD approval of the RFQ/RFP. Ho,uvever. the
business terms negotiated as part of the Development Agreement must be codified
in the Term Sheet and submitted to HUD fbr approval.

PHAs should submit the Term Sheet to the Grant Manager as early in the process
as is possible. I{ 'possible, the Term Sheet should be submitted at the same time
the PHA submits i ts Pre-Development or Development Agreement fbr HtJD
review and approval. At a minimum, the Term Sheet must be submitted as part of
the Mixed-Finance Prooosal.

The term sheet format can be found on the web at:
http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/programs/ph/hope6/mfph/rental_term_sheet.doc.

For more detailed information on the FIUD approval process. please review the
Project Review Panel Protocol at:
http://www.hud.gov/offices/pihiprograms/ph/hope6/mfph/project_revierv.cfm

Q46: What is an identity of interest party?

An identity of interest party is an entity with ownership interest in different
businesses working on the same mixed-finance project. Examples include a
developer (or its parent corporation) with an ownership interest in a general
contractor, properfy management firm. anci/or equiry investor.

Q47:. Can developers use identity of interest parties?

To use an identity of interest general contractor, the owner must demonstrate that
the related entity was the lowest bidder submitted in a public request for bids, or
seek a waiver from HUD (see 24 CFR part 9a L606(n)( I XiiXB)). The owner may
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select identity of interest parties for activities other than those of a general
contractor (e.g., property manager).

Q48: Are there any procurement requirements when using a "preferred" equity
investor, i.e., an investor who does not have an identity of interest but with
whom the developer prefers to work?

While the use of related orpreferred entities as investors is permitted, HUD's
Cost Control and Safe Harbor Standards encourage PHAs to have their procured
developer "shop around" to ensure they are gett ing a competit ive yield.
"Competit iveness" should be considered in the size of equity raise ( i .e., cents on
the dollar), pay in schedule and in the terms negotiated between the investor and
the developer (e.g.. guarantees, level of reserves, etc.). HUD may issue further
guidance to clarif l ,  what procedures a PHA should ask i ts procured developer to
undertake in order to ensure obtaining a competit ive yield.

Q49 What are the requirements for mixed-f inance procurement cert i f ication?

To date, I  IOPE VI Grantecs have bcen required through their grarrt agreement to
submit their program manager RFPs and Developer RFQs to HtJD fbr approval
prior to advert isement. Any PHA that has attended a HUD-sponsored mixed-
f inance procurement training and is not troubled, mod-troubled. or otherwise
required to submit procurements for HLJD review may cert i fy the prclcurement.
Cert i f ication permits PHAs to advert ise for program managers or developers
without receiving H[JD approval of the RFQ or RFP, and yields a laster process.
Certi f ication does not protect PHAs from audit or rel ieve any record-keeping
requirements. PHAs sti l l  have to submit the Program Manager contract or
Developer Agreement to t lUD for review'and approval, prior to execution.

Q50: When does the PHA complete the procurement certification?

The certification should be submitted to HUD with the Development Agreement
or Program Management contract. which HUD must approve before execution.

Q51: Can a PHA certify to a procurement that took place prior to its attendance
at the HUD-sponsored procurement training and which HUD has not yet
approved?

No. A PHA may only certify to a procurement if the RFP or RFQ was issued
after the date of the mixed-finance procurement trainins attended bv the PHA
staff.
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